
 

 

BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS’ – 
MEETING 

Commissioners' Agenda 
 

The Board of County Commissioners (BOCC) is comprised of the three elected County 
Commissioners: Ernie Moser (District 1), Jeff Hough (District 2, Chair), and Ken Bullock (District 
3). The BOCC generally meets twice weekly: Tuesdays & Thursdays at 9:00 a.m. Unless otherwise 
noted, meetings are generally held in the Commissioner's Chambers at 624 E Center, Room 212, 
Pocatello, Idaho. During these public meetings, the BOCC may approve contracts, expend funds, 
hear testimony, make decisions on land use cases, and take care of other County matters. 

Times are subject to change within 15 minutes of the stated time. 

 

Tuesday, February 24, 2026 
9:00 AM  Business Meeting (action items) 

Agenda:  

• Indigent Business may require an Executive Session pursuant to Idaho Code §74-
206(1)(d) to consider records exempt from public disclosure (action item) 

• Ashley Bringhurst, D6 Treatment, requesting approval of and signature on Service Order 
Form with Qualifacts (requested 15 minutes) (action item) 

• Shanda Crystal, Procurement, seeking to discuss (1) potential signature on project 
agreement with PaveConnect through the Equalis cooperative, (2) potential signature on 
Contract for Brush Removal Projects with CR Fence Company, and (3) providing a 
Procurement update (requested 10 minutes) (action items) 

• Kristi Klauser, Auditing, regarding an update pertaining to the Bannock County Events 
Fund (requested 5 minutes) (action item) 

• Matthew K. Phillips, Human Resources/Risk Management, seeking approval for Memo 
requesting personnel leave with possible Executive Session under Idaho Code §74-
206(1)(a)&(b) regarding personnel with potential action following adjournment of 
Executive Session (requested 5 minutes) (action item) 
 

RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES (action items): 
 

LETTERS AND NOTICES (action items):    

1 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



SIGNATURE ONLY (action items): 

CONSENT AGENDA (action items): 
• Manual Checks
• Alcohol Licenses and Catering Permits
• Certificate of Residency Approval
• Salary Rate Approval Forms/Notice of Separation with Potential Executive Session under

Idaho Code §74-206(1)(a)&(b) regarding personnel with potential action following
adjournment of Executive Session

• Mileage and Travel Approvals
• Minutes: Approval of and signature on certification for meeting minutes for February 17

and 19, 2026.

2 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



3 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



Q QUALIFACTS"
• 

SERVICE ORDER FORM 

Customer Name: 06 Treatment - Bannock County 
Contact Name: 

Address: 

Ernie Moser
1001 North 7th Ave. Ste. 260, Pocatello, ID 83201 

Phone Number: 208-236-7331
Email Address: commission@bannockcountv.qov 
Effective Date: 2.-24-·202(,o 
Platform: lnSvnc 

This Service Order Form is made as of the Effective Date set forth above between Qualifacts Systems, LLC ("Vendor"), a 
Delaware limited liability company having its principal place of business at 315 Deaderick Street, Suite 2300, Nashville, 
Tennessee 37238, and the Customer identified above. This Service Order Form is made pursuant to, and is governed by, 
the Terms and Conditions between Vendor and Customer (the "Agreement"). Defined terms used but not defined in this 
Service Order Form are as defined in the Agreement. 

1. Software and Services - Under this Service Order Form, Vendor shall provide the following products and services in order to
develop a Master Configuration for Customer, and Customer shall pay the following fees to Vendor for such products and services
on the payment dates set forth below.

(a) Monthly Recurring Charges for Vendor's Core Software.

Monthly charges for the Core Software set forth below will begin on the earlier of: (i) the Go-Live Date, or (ii) six months 
after the Term Start Date. The first month's Core Software fees will be pro-rated based on the date of the month on which 
earlier of the preceding event occurs. 

ii. Quantities included herein are contractual minimums regardless of actual usage. If actual usage exceeds contracted
amounts in a given month, Customer will be invoiced for the actual peak number of Users for th at month, provided, however
that Vendor's Core Software actual users that exceed contracted user counts in a given month will be invoiced at 105%
current sales price.

(b) Monthly Recurring Charges for Add-On Products.

Upon the Go-Live Date, all Add-On Products will be charged for a full month. Upon commencement of month 13 following 
the Term Start Date and each year annually thereafter, the Sales Price for all Add-On Products shall be automatically 
adjusted to Vendor's then-current prices for such Add-On Products. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the 
Agreement and this Service Order Form, the provision of Add-On Products is at all times subject to Vendors' contractual 
relationships with the corresponding company. 

ii. Quantities included herein are contractual minimums regardless of actual usage. If actual usage exceeds contracted
amounts in a given month, Customer will be invoiced for the actual peak number of usage for that month.

(c) Implementation Services and Other Non-Recurring Charges. Total upfront costs are due upon execution of this Service Order
Form. Payment terms and charges Implementation Services and Other Non-Recurring Charges are as set forth below.
Customer agrees and acknowledges there are no refunds for any upfront costs (including license purchase fees), recurring
fees, or third-party fees.

(d) Exhibits. The Exhibits attached hereto are incorporated herein by reference.

(e) Terms and Conditions. Customer's access to and continued use of the Software and Services (including RCM Services, if 
applicable) is subject to acceptance of Vendor's Terms and Conditions located at www.insynchcs.com/terms-conditions.
Customer will be required to accept such Terms and Conditions online upon logging into the Software and should review such
documents in detail to ensure compliance. The Terms and Conditions are incorporated into this Service Order Form.

2. Term & Product Innovation Increase -

(a) This Service Order Form commences on the Term Start Date and continues through the Term End Date (the "Initial Term").
Thereafter, this Service Order Form will automatically renew for an unlimited number of 24 month renewal terms (each, a
"Renewal Term"), unless either party notifies the other party of its intention not to renew at least 90 days in advance of the
expiration of the then current term. The "Term" of this Agreement shall be the Initial Term and any Renewal Terms.

(b) In order to support Vendor's ongoing research and development of the Software, commencing 12 months from the Term Start
Date, Customer's Monthly Recurring Charges will automatically increase on an annual basis by Fees for the Software will
increase by the greater of (i) 5% or (ii) the then-current CPI (defined herein as the Consumer Price Index for All Urban
Consumers, U.S. City Average, for all items published by the US Department of Labor).

(c) Vendor recognizes that Customer is a governmental entity. Auto renewal of this Agreement shall occur only so long as
Customer appropriates funds for execution of this Agreement. If sufficient funds are not appropriated for any given fiscal year,

- 1 -

4 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



5 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



6 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



7 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



8 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



9 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



10 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



11 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



12 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



13 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



14 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



15 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



16 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



17 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



18 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



19 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



20 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



21 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



22 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



23 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



24 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



25 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



26 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



27 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



28 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



29 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



30 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



31 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



32 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



33 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



34 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



35 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



36 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



37 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



38 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



39 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



40 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



41 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



42 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



43 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



44 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



45 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



46 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



47 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



48 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



49 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



DRAFT February 17, 2026, BOCC Minutes 

 

  

  Meeting Details       

  Date of Meeting: Tuesday, February 17, 2026 

  Commissioners present: Ernie Moser, Jeff Hough, and Ken Bullock 

  Clerk of the Board: Jason C. Dixon 

  Absent Board Members:  

  
Staff present: 

Deputy Clerk Nancy Allen, Comptroller Kristi Klauser, and Attorney 

Jonathan Radford 

        

  Agenda Details       

  AGENDA 
  Regular Business Meeting (action item) 

Agenda: 

1 • Indigent Business may require an Executive Session pursuant to Idaho Code §74-206(1)(d) to 

consider records exempt from public disclosure (action item) 

2 • Discussion about a Bannock County Tax Exemption Ordinance Pursuant to Idaho §63-602nn 

(potential action item) 

3 • Karen Trumbull, Office of Emergency Management, requesting signature on Professional 

Services Contract for Technical Assistance Services (requested 10 minutes) (action item) 

4 • Kristi Davenport, Commission Office, requesting approval of and signature on a Fairgrounds 

Contract with waived fees for the Idaho Association of Counties Spring County Officials Institute 

(requested 5 minutes) (action item) 

5 • Kiel Burmester, Public Works, seeking Executive Session under Idaho Code §74-206(1)(a)&(b) 

regarding personnel with potential action following adjournment of Executive Session (requested 

10 minutes) (action item) 

6 • Jason Dixon, Clerk, seeking an Executive Session under Idaho Code §74-206(1)(c) to acquire an 

interest in real property not owned by a public agency with potential action following 

adjournment of Executive Session (requested 15 minutes) (action item) 

7 RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES (action items): 

Resolution No. 2026-12 Authorization and Order to Reallocate Funds 

8 LETTERS AND NOTICES (action items):    

Public Hearing Notices 

9 CONSENT AGENDA (action items): 

• Manual Checks 

• Alcohol Licenses and Catering Permits 

• Certificate of Residency Approval 

• Salary Rate Approval Forms/Notice of Separation with Potential Executive Session under Idaho 

Code §74-206(1)(a)&(b) regarding personnel with potential action following adjournment of 

Executive Session 

• Mileage and Travel Approvals 

• Minutes: Approval of and signature on certification for meeting minutes for February 10 and 12, 

2026 

10 Interview for Board of Community Guardians board with Executive Session under Idaho Code §74-

206(1)(a)&(b) regarding personnel with potential action following adjournment of Executive Session 

(action item) 
 

 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF  

BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

50 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



DRAFT February 17, 2026, BOCC Minutes 

 

 

 

 

  Meeting Notes 
  
  

  

1 9:00 AM Hough called the meeting to order. There were no cremation applications for review. 

 

2 9:19 AM Assessor Anita Hymas and Chief Deputy Assessor Randy Hobson appeared. Radford reviewed 

a draft §63-602NN ordinance. Input was requested for tiers and application process. Hymas reviewed 

concerns. Discussion ensued on a process, check list, scoring matrix, requiring 100% of the median wage 

and accountability with yearly reporting, and giving a pro rata exemption for the percentage of 

completion of the agreement.  

 

3 9:00 AM Charity Staggs also appeared. Trumbull explained the contract for grant writing and other 

services. Staggs reviewed the contract has been used for grant writing, but not always for Bannock 

County. That has not worked well with some reporting issues and the smaller districts not qualifying for 

grants. Discussion ensued on funding, the SHSP grant. The contract would be paid from funds on a 

previous grant that are use it or lose it. Concerns were discussed regarding the scope of the contract. 9:18 

AM Bullock moved to approve the agreement. The motion passed with Hough and Bullock voting for. 

Moser opposed.  

 

4 9:38 AM Davenport requested a fee waiver for the Exhibit Hall for an IAC event. Moser moved to 

approve a fee waiver. The motion passed.  

 

5 9:39 AM Assistant Public Work Director Buddy Romriell also appeared. Hough moved to enter into 

executive session under Idaho Code §74-206(1)(a)&(b) regarding personnel and under Idaho Code §74-

206(1)(c) to acquire an interest in real property for the Clerk’s discussion. The motion passed by roll call 

vote. 9:51 AM Romriell and Burmester exited. 

 

6 9:57 AM Hough moved to exit executive session. The motion passed.  

 

7 9:57 AM Moser moved to approve Resolution 2026-12. The motion passed. 

 

8 9:58 AM Bullock moved to approve the publication of the public hearing notices. The motion passed. 

 

9 9:58 AM Moser moved to approve the items on the consent agenda. The motion passed.  

 

10 9:59 AM Moser moved to enter into executive session under Idaho Code §74-206(1)(a)&(b) regarding 

personnel. The motion passed by roll call vote. Allen and Dixon exited. 10:12 AM Hough moved to exit 

executive session. The motion passed. Bullock moved to appoint Valentina Reudter to the Board of 

Community Guardians. The motion passed.  

  

 

  Action Item Summary 
  
  

  ACTION/DIRECTION ASSIGNED TO 

  Legal will edit draft tax exemption ordinance for review. Legal 

  Contract with SICOG for professional services was approved. OEM 

  Fee waiver for Exhibit Hall granted for IAC. Parks & Rec 

  

Executive session was held for personnel matters and discussion regarding 

property. Clerk 

  

Resolution 2026-12 Authorization and Order to Reallocate Funds was 

passed. 
Clerk 

 Publication notices for rezone and vacation public hearings were signed. Planning/Clerk 

 Items in the consent agenda were approved. Auditing/Resolution 

 

Valentina Reudter was approved for appointment to the Board of 

Community Guardians following executive session. 
Clerk/Commission/BOCG 

 

51 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



DRAFT February 19, 2026, BOCC Minutes 

 

  

  Meeting Details       

  Date of Meeting: Thursday, February 19, 2026 

  Commissioners present: Ernie Moser, Jeff Hough, and Ken Bullock 

  Clerk of the Board: Nancy Allen for Jason C. Dixon 

  Absent Board Members:  

  
Staff present: 

Deputy Clerk Nancy Allen, Comptroller Kristi Klauser, Attorney Jonathan 

Radford, and PIO Emma Iannacone 

        

  Agenda Details       

  AGENDA 
  Work Session and Claims Meeting (action items) 

Agenda: 

1 • Hal Jensen, Planning and Development, requesting to discuss Memorandum of Understanding 

with Fort Hall (requested 10 minutes) (action item) 

2 • Scott Crowther, Event Center/Wellness Complex, seeking review and signature on (1) Rental 

Agreement with Pocatello Downs, (2) Rental Agreement with Professional Rodeo Cowboy 

Association (PCRA), (3) Event Center Contract with Donor Connect, and (4) Event Center 

Contract requesting a fee waiver with University of Idaho/Bannock County Extension (requested 

10 minutes) (action items) 

3 • Nikola Ennis, UI Bannock County Extension, requesting to provide program updates 

4 • Dillon Evans, Solid Waste, requesting signatures for Payment and Performance Bonds as well as 

the contract for the Landfill Entrance Facility with Great West Engineering (requested 5 minutes) 

(action item) 

5 • Dan Kendall, Buildings and Grounds, providing a monthly update 

6 Claims Agenda: 

• Board of Ambulance District: Invoices and Commissioner Report 

• Board of Commissioners: Invoices, Commissioners Reports, and Credit Applications 

• Salary Rate Approval Forms/Notice of Separation with Potential Executive Session under Idaho 

Code §74-206(1)(a)&(b) regarding personnel with potential action following adjournment of 

Executive Session 

• Payroll Report 

• Alcohol Licenses and Permits 

• Certificate of Residency Approval 

• Mileage Reimbursement Requests 

• Technology Request Form 

• Memorandum Authorization for Accounts Payable 

• Cardholder User Agreement and Authorization 
 

 

 

 

 

  Meeting Notes 
  
  

  

1 9:00 AM Hough called the meeting to order. 

 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF  

BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

52 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026



DRAFT February 19, 2026, BOCC Minutes 

 

2 9:00 AM LuKrena Schoonover also appeared. Crowther reviewed the Pocatello Downs contract is similar 

to the last few years. Concerns were discussed regarding water usage, curtailments, and adding to the fee 

schedule. A public hearing to add a fee will have to be scheduled. The contract was tabled to look into the 

water issue. 

9:17 AM Amber Davis with Donor Connect appeared. Crowther reviewed the event. Davis reviewed the 

funds are for education. Fee waiver requested for pavilion. Moser requested the 988 crisis hotline number 

be added to flyers similar to sponsorships. Bullock moved to approve the contract. The motion passed. 

9:20 AM Nikki Ennis appeared and reviewed the planned community event and request for fee waiver. 

Moser moved to approve the agreement. The motion passed.  

9:21 AM Crowther reviewed a contract for the PRCA Big Bucks Pro Rodeo. Discussion ensued on water 

and dates. Hough moved to approve the contract. The motion passed.  

 

3 9:31 AM Jennifer Reader, Extension Educator, also appeared. Ennis gave updates on the master gardner 

program, commodity schools, and research. Reader gave updates on programs, trainings, education, and 

home food preservation classes. Ennis updated the Board on 4-H programs, a fair logo contest, and YDC 

classes. They have a student working on putting together a community needs assessment. Questions were 

addressed on 4-H participation and plans for the America 250 celebrations. 

 

4 9:41 AM Stephanie Wilke with Great West Engineering and Kyle Frost, Assistant Landfill Manager also 

appeared. Evans presented a contract and bonds for the scale house project. Contract costs and the 

engineering fee might come in slightly over budget, but can be absorbed in the budget. Moser moved to 

approve the contract. The motion passed.  

 

5 9:44 AM Kendall gave updates on the fob entry for the Exhibit Hall and reviewed projects coming up, the 

annex sewer, the boiler, and parking lot. 

 

6 9:56 AM Bullock moved to approve the items on the claims agenda. The motion passed.  

 

  Action Item Summary 
  
  

  ACTION/DIRECTION ASSIGNED TO 

  

Events contracts reviewed with fee waivers being granted for Donor 

Connect and Ag Extension; PRCA Big Buck Pro Rodeo contract was 

approved; and Pocatello Downs contract was tabled. 

Parks and Rec 

 

  Ag Extension and Buildings and Grounds department updates were given. Info only 

  

Contracts and bonds were approved with Great West Engineering and 

Staker & Parson DBA Idaho Materials and Construction for the Landfill 

scale house and entrance project. 

Landfill/Procurement 

 

  Items on the claims agenda were approved. Auditing/Resolution 
 

53 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING FEBRUARY 24, 2026


	Binder1.pdf
	February 24, 2026
	20260224 BOCC Business Meeting Information Packet.pdf
	20260217 Minutes DRAFT
	20260219 Minutes DRAFT

	p2



